Welcome!

You are inside an ancient and special building which has
miraculously remained intact and continuously active for
over 2,000 years. This structure was built over the Cave
of Machpela, the sacred burial cave complex where the
Patriarchs and Matriarchs of the Bible were laid to rest.

The Ancient Structure

The building above the cave was built by Herod, King of Judah, about 2,000
years ago. The style of the building and the Herodian masonry is the same
as the walls of the Temple Mount in Jerusalem and its remnant, the Western
Wall. Its dimensions are 60mx35m. The upper floor, where you are standing,
was built for visitation and prayer. Six memorial markers (“Tziyyunim" in
Hebrew) were placed at symmetrical intervals to represent the tombs of the
Patriarchs and Matriarchs: the central pair represent Abraham and Sarah,
the eastern pair for Isaac and Rebecca, and the western pair for Jacob and
Leah. Research shows that the original entrance gates to the structure
were in the southern and northern walls (1)

Schematic diagrams - the structure before and after its division

In the Talmudic period (Byzantine era, 6th century CE), the building was
divided and the eastern part was sectioned off for use as a church. In the
7th-8th century CE, rooms were built around the markers of Abraham and
Sarah, and Jacob and Leah.

The conquering Mamluks later converted the church into a mosque, but
the synagogue continued to function. (2)

In 1119 CE, the entrance to the underground system was revealed. The
Crusader rulers allowed visitors to enter the tombs. Among those who had
the privilege of entering was the Jewish physician and codifier Rambam
"“Maimonides” (1165 CE), who wrote: "l left Jerusalem for Hebron and that
day | stood in the cave and offered praise to God."

During this period, an awning was erected over the passageway to the cave
complex below the building. (3)

Hall of Isaac and Rebecca

On the opposite ends of the Hall of Isaac and Rebecca are two entrances
to the underground cave. These entrances have been sealed for many
generations and are shrouded in mystery. An ancient Jewish tradition calls
the cave the "gateway to heaven" a place that connects heaven and earth
and where souls and prayers ascend to heaven. (4)

The Western Entrance to the Shrine

A stone canopy was erected during the Mamluk period over the western
entrance to the cave complex. (5)

During this period (1267 CE) Jews and Christians were forbidden to enter
the complex and were only allowed to ascend to the seventh step outside
the building. Jews prayed there for almost 700 years.

The First Modern Exploration in 1968

Under Israeli control, an attempt was made in 1968 to excavate the Cave. A
12-year-old girl, became the first person to enter the Cave in 700 years. She
discovered a tunnel under the Hall of Isaac and Rebecca, and the stairs
leading up from it, ending in a stone wall. The results of her exploration
were published by Defense Minister Moshe Dayan and formed the basis
for further research. (6)

The Discovery of the Cave

Thanks to the 1968 exploration, an eastern entrance to the underground
caves dating to the Crusader period was discovered. On the night of Selichot
in 1981, a team from Midreshet Hevron (Hebron College) descended into this
entrance and discovered the inner cave beneath the memorial monument
to Abraham which dated to the era of the Patriarchs and Matriarchs. Pottery
from the Kingdom of Judah (8th-9th century BCE) was also discovered
there. (7)

Thus it was proved that
the underground complex
contains a double cave.

However, today the entrance
iIsclosed.Inthecross-section
map you can see the double
cave, the “Room of Candles”
aboveit, the tunnelthatleads
into the cave, and the steps
leading to the upper plaza. (8)
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